
                                
KITTERY TOWN COUNCIL 

April 10, 2023 
6:00PM 

1. Call to Order 

Chair Spiller called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 

2. Introductory 

3. Pledge of Allegiance 

4. Roll Call   

Councilors present: Councilor Bragg, Councilor Dow, Councilor Hamm, Councilor Clark, 
Councilor Stevens, Vice Chair McGuire and Chair Spiller  

5. Agenda Amendment and Adoption 

Chair Spiller cast one vote to accept agenda as presented. 

6. Town Manager’s Report  

Town Manager reported on Homelessness Response Preparedness, Memorial Circle Beach 
Grass, Kittery Community Center Master Plan, Applications for Absentee Ballots and the April 
Freebie Barn. 

Upcoming Dates: 
Absentee Ballot Applications Available 
KCC Campus Master Plan Input Session – April 12 
York River Partnership Stewardship Committee Applications Due – April 14 
Mooring Renewal Deadline – April 15 
Observance of Patriots Day – Town Hall Closed – April 17 
Kittery Education Scholarship Deadline – April 21 
Seacoast Environmental Film Festival – April 22 
Freebie Barn Community Swap and Bike Repair – April 30 
Town Meeting and School Budget Validation Referendum – June 13 
 
7. Acceptance of Previous Minutes  

•  February 27, 2023 

All were in favor to accept as presented. 

8. Interviews for the Board of Appeals and Planning Board. - None 



 
9. All items involving the town attorney, town engineers, town employees or other town 

consultants or requested offices.  

a. (040123-01) The Kittery Town Council moves to accept a presentation from the 
Kittery School Department on the FY24 Budget.  

Eric Waddell, Superintendent of Schools, gave a presentation for the FY24 School Department 
Budget. 

Councilor Clark asked about the Federal Impact Fee and how many students were receiving it. 
He stated his disapproval toward the amount of funding from the Federal Government for 
these students and requested that the Town Manager write a letter to the Congressional 
Leaders requesting additional funds for these students.  

Councilor Stevens asked if there was one Social Worker to serve all districts and if there was a 
plan to increase that number in the future. 
Superintendent responded. 
 
Councilor Dow thanked the Superintendent for the presentation. He inquired about the Debt 
Service Payments and how it is used. 
Superintendent responded. 
 
Councilor Stevens asked about the Lacrosse Teams that they are deferring. 
Superintendent responded. 
 
Councilor Hamm thanked the Superintendent for his presentation and asked how many 
Special Ed students were enrolled in Kittery Schools. He also asked if there is a plan to 
address the issues with technology within school hours. 
Superintendent responded. 
 
 
 
10. PUBLIC HEARINGS  

a. (040123-02) The Kittery Town Council moves to hold a public hearing on Title 16 – 
Stormwater Management (Will be postponed) 

Town Manager asked that the public hearing be postponed until May 8, 2023. 

Motion to postpone until May 8, 20230 made by Councilor Dow, seconded by Vice Chair 
McGuire. 
Motion passes 7-0-0 
 
 
11. DISCUSSION 

a.  Discussion by members of the public (three minutes per person)  



b.  Response to public comment directed to a particular Councilor 
c.  Chairperson’s response to public comments 

12. UNFINISHED BUSINESS - None 

13. NEW BUSINESS 

a.  Donations/gifts received for Council disposition. None 

b. (040123-03) The Kittery Town Council moves to schedule a public hearing on April 
24, 2023, on Title 12 – Camping. 

Moved to schedule a public hearing on April 24,2023 by Councilor Dow, seconded by 
Councilor Bragg. 
All were in favor. 
 

c. (040123-04) The Kittery Town Council moves to schedule a public hearing on April 
24, 2023, on Title 10 – Cutts Island Lane Traffic Safety. 

Moved to schedule a public hearing on April 24, 2023 by Vice Chair McGuire, seconded by 
Councilor Hamm 
All were in favor. 
 

d. (040123-05) The Kittery Town Council moves to schedule a public hearing on May 
8, 2023 on the vacation of a paper street in accordance with 23 MRS §3027. 

Town Manager gave an overview. 

Moved to schedule a public hearing on May 8, 2023 by Councilor Dow, seconded by Councilor 
Hamm. 
Motion passes 7-0-0 
 
 

e. (040123-06) The Kittery Town Council moves to schedule a public hearing on May 
1, 2023, on the Town Meeting Referendum and School Budget Ordinances. 

Moved to schedule the public hearing on May 1, 2023 by Councilor Dow, seconded by Vice 
Chair McGuire. 
All were in favor. 
 

f. (040123-07) The Kittery Town Council moves to schedule a public hearing on May 
8, 2023 on a new Special Activity/Amusement permit from Rolling in the Mudd LLC 
dba When Pigs Fly Restaurant located at 460 US Rte 1, Kittery. 

Moved to hold a public hearing on May 8, 2023 by Councilor Hamm, seconded by Councilor 
Stevens. 



All were in favor. 
 

g. (040123-08) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve a request from 
Harbourside Garden Club to post signage around Town from May 20, 2023 to May 
27, 2023 for their annual plant sale.  

Moved to approve request by Councilor Stevens, seconded by Councilor Dow. 

Councilor Dow asked about the rules on signage. 
Town Manager responded. 
 
Chair Spiller asked if businesses are allowed to display signs on their property. 
Town Manager responded 
 
Motion passes 7-0-0  

h. (040123-09) The Kittery Town Council moves to appoint Erin Brochu, Scott Simpson 
Jr and Carol James to the Youth Ad Hoc Committee:  

Moved to appoint Erin Brochu, Scott Simpson Jr and Carol James by Councilor Dow, 
seconded by Councilor Clark. 

Councilor Stevens asked if these were community wide members and if there would be 
members from other committees. 
Councilor Bragg responded. 
 
Motion passes 7-0-0 

 
14. COUNCILOR ISSUES OR COMMENTS 

Councilor Bragg stated that she is happy to be moving forward with the Ad Hoc Committee and 
that she did receive one youth application for the Committee. 

Councilor Dow thanked the School Department for the presentation and encouraged Traip 
students to apply for the Recycling Scholarship. 

Councilor Clark discussed the Federal Impact Fee and its impact on residents. 

Councilor Hamm stated that he has been over in the Pacific area and he took away how 
important peace is in our world today. He stated that he is glad to be back. 

Councilor Stevens stated that she has no comments this evening. 

Vice Chair McGuire stated that he has no comments this evening. 



Chair Spiller stated that she has no comments this evening. 

 

15. COMMITTEE AND OTHER REPORTS- None 
a. Communications from the Chairperson  
b. Committee Reports  

16. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

17. ADJOURNMENT    
         
Moved to adjourn by Councilor Stevens at 7:26 PM, seconded by Vice Chair McGuire. 
All were in favor. 
 
 
Submitted by Jennifer Wheeler 
 
Disclaimer: The following minutes constitute the author’s understanding of the meeting. Whilst 
every effort has been made to ensure the accuracy of the information, the minutes are not 
intended as a verbatim transcript of comments at the meeting, but a refer to the video of the 
meeting on the Town of Kittery website. 


